
 

UNBC Board of Governors Public Agenda – January 29, 2016 Page 1 of 2 

 

 
                  BOARD OF GOVERNORS - PUBLIC SESSION AGENDA 

  

 Friday, January 29, 2016     

 9:00am – 11:45am 

UNBC Senate Chambers Room #1079 

 

Teleconference Instructions: 

From the Vancouver area, dial: 604-899-4310 

From anywhere else in North America, dial: 1-877-234-4610 

Participants conference Pass Code: 2599371# 

For assistance anytime throughout the conference please press * and 0 (zero) for a TELUS conference representative. 

 

 

Participants: 

Karin Beeler, Carolee Clyne, Eric Depenau, Katherine LaForge, Kathy Lewis, John MacDonald, 

Ryan Matheson, Harry Nyce Sr., Sean Simmons, Daniel Weeks, Tracey Wolsey, Simon Yu, Julie Ziebart 

 

UNBC Representatives (Non-Voting): 

Geoff Payne (Interim Vice-President Research), Colleen Smith (Director of Finance & Budgets), Barb Daigle 

(Interim Vice-President Administration and Finance), Daniel Ryan (Acting Vice-President Academic and 

Provost), Katherine Scouten (Development Manager), Heather Sanford (University Secretariat)  

 

Denise Nagy (EA, Board of Governors - Recording)  

 

 

1. Chair’s Remarks 

NOTE: The Board of Governors Agenda for the Public Session consists of a consent agenda and a regular agenda. The consent  

agenda contains items that are routine and non-controversial, and discussion is not necessary. The consent agenda is moved 

and approved as a group. The Chair will inquire whether there are any items that need to be removed from the consent 

agenda and if so, these items will be placed on the regular agenda. The Chair will ask for approval of the items or motions 

on the consent agenda as follows: 

Motion: That the motions on the consent agenda, except for those removed for placement on the regular agenda, 

 be approved as presented. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda – page 3 

Regular That, the Agenda for the Public Session of the January 29, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be  

 approved, as presented. 

      

3. Approval of Minutes  

Regular November 14, 2015 – page 4 

That, the Public Session Minutes of the November 14, 2015 meeting of the Board of Governors be approved as 

presented.  

4. Business Arising  

 

5. Human Resources Committee – Harry Nyce Sr., Chair 

Consent a. President’s Recommendation for Promotion and/or Tenure (information) – D. Weeks/D. Ryan 

  – page 9 
Regular b. Currently Advertised Faculty Positions (discussion) – D. Ryan – page 19 

1



 

UNBC Board of Governors Public Agenda – January 29, 2016 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

6. Finance and Audit Committee – Julie Ziebart, Chair 
Regular a. Planning Update (discussion) – B. Daigle/R. Ryan – page 22 

Regular b. Capital Projects Update (discussion) – B. Daigle/C. Smith – page 23 

Regular c. Enrolment Report (discussion) – D. Ryan – page 26 

Consent d. Agreements, Scholarships, Bursaries and Awards (information) – D. Ryan – page 31 

 
7. Governance Committee – Simon Yu, Chair 

Regular a. 2016/17 Ministry Mandate Letter (discussion) – R. Matheson/H. Sanford – page 64 
 

8. Office of External Relations – Daniel Weeks 

Regular a. Office of External Relations Report (discussion) – D. Weeks/K. Scouten – page 77 
(i) Fundraising Report 

(ii) Communications with Stakeholders 
(iii) Report on Government Relations 

 

9. Office of Research – Geoff Payne 

Regular a. Office of Research Report (discussion) – G. Payne – page 79 

 

10. President’s Report 

Regular a. Report on President’s Activities (information) – page 84 

 

11. Chancellor’s Report – page 85 
 

12. Other Business 
 a. Presentation on Directors & Officers Liability Coverage by UCIPP (9:30 am – 10:30 am) – H. Sanford  

                 – page 86 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS – PUBLIC SESSION 

Approved for Submission: 

 
_________________________ 

Heather Sanford 

University Secretary 

2



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 29, 2016 

Agenda Item:  2. Approval of Agenda 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session     X    Public Session 

Purpose:       Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction   X    Approval 

Prepared By: Denise Nagy, Executive Assistant, UNBC Board of Governors  

Reviewed By: Heather Sanford, University Secretary and the President’s Executive Council 

 

 

Material:  Agenda for the Board Public Session of January 29, 2016 attached. 

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background: 

 

 

 

Motion:  That, the Agenda for the Public Session of the January 29, 2016 meeting of the Board of Governors be 

approved as presented 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

3



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

 

Date: January 29, 2016 

Agenda Item:  3. Approval of Minutes – Public Session November 14, 2015 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X   Public Session 

Purpose:       Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction  X   Approval 

Prepared By: Denise Nagy, Executive Assistant, UNBC Board of Governors 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:   

 

 

 

Issue:               

              

              

              

            

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:   That, the Public Session Minutes of the November 14, 2015 meeting of the Board of Governors be                            

approved as presented. 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

4



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 29, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.a. Planning Update  

Prepared For:        In-Camera Session     x    Public Session 

Purpose:        Information   x    Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Daniel Ryan, Acting Vice-President Academic & Provost and Barb Daigle, Interim 

Vice-President Administration & Finance 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:   

 

Barb Daigle and Dan Ryan will provide an update on the current status of planning processes. 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:    

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

22



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 29, 2016 

Agenda Item:  6.b. Capital Projects Update 

Prepared For:        In-Camera Session     x    Public Session 

Purpose:        Information   x    Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Shelley Rennick, Director, Facilities Management 

Reviewed By: Barb Daigle, Interim Vice-President Administration & Finance 

 

 

The Five Year Capital Plan 2015 – 2020 includes the following projects, in priority order. 

 

 1/  Allied Health Sciences Building 

 2/  Facilities Management building c/w multi-purpose lab 

 3/  Engineering Program space – Repurposing 

 4/  Sustainable Communities & Bioenergy Expansion 

 5/  Residence Renewal 

 6/  International Education and Continuing Studies Building 

 7/  Charles Jago Northern Sports Centre Expansion 

 

The annual submission of the Five Year Capital Plan for 2016 – 2021 was a straight roll-over of the 2015 – 

2021 plan in anticipation of the Academic Planning process.  It is now time to start the detailed planning 

process for the submission of the 2017- 2022 Five Year Capital Plan which is due to government in June 

2016.   

 

UPDATE on the current plan 

 

1/  Allied Health Sciences Building 

 

 Status: 

A consultant was retained to provide a report to UBC, MAVED, and UNBC on the viability 

of expanding Allied Health Sciences, particularly Physiotherapy in the north.  The draft report 

has been received and confirms the need for expanded programming at UNBC.  This 

information is currently being reviewed in conjunction with the Academic Planning process.   

23



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

2/  Facilities Management building c/w multi-purpose lab 

 

 Status: 

 

There has been no further activity on this project since the last report however, this planning does 

need to be resurrected to accommodate space for expanded Engineering programming. 

 

3/  Engineering Program space – Repurposing 

 

 Status: 

 

The development of a Civil Engineering program at UNBC is currently going through the academic 

approvals and capital planning processes.  Following the recent Functional Planning exercise that was 

undertaken it is clear that an expansion of the undergraduate portion of the Civil program can be 

housed in current, underutilized space on the Prince George campus.  Graduate, research and other 

future additional Engineering programming space will require a new building. 

 

The academic approvals process will continue and a Conceptual Plan will be submitted to the 

Ministry in the coming months. 

 

4/  Sustainable Communities and Bioenergy Expansion 

 

Status: 

 

Sustainable Communities Demonstration Project – Phase 1  

 

The piping has been installed, but connection of the heat input and retrofit of the end-use buildings 

has been delayed.  Design work is restarting, with installation scheduled for spring and summer 2016.  

The schedule is driven by a need to coordinate with the residence renovations, and energy cost 

savings that begin to accrue once complete. 

 

Budget:  There is $1.0 million remaining in this budget to complete this project. 

  

5/  Residence Renewal 

 

 Status: 

 

The focus of this project is: to enhance student experience, to preserve the building asset, and to 

reduce on-going operating costs.  The architectural team has completed the design and drawings and 

the sub-trade tenders are scheduled to go out January 25
th

.   

 

Construction work in Residence 1 (Neyoh) is scheduled for April 25 through August 26, 2016, with 

work on Residence 2 (Keyoh) scheduled for the following summer. 

 

Budget:  $11 million has been allocated for this project. 

 

 

 

24



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

6/  International Education and Continuing Studies Building 

 

 Status: 

 

The requirement for a building to house these activities has been put on hold pending the Academic 

Planning process.   

 

7/  Charles Jago Northern Sports Centre Expansion 

 

 Status: 

 

A proposal to start the planning and consultation process for building expansion is part of ongoing 

discussions with the NSCL Board.  Further updates will be provided as this moves forward. 

 

OTHER CAPITAL PROJECTS 

 

BMO 

 

The BMO building downtown is currently underutilized and a number of deferred maintenance items 

are on the horizon.  Therefore a business concept and capital renewal report is currently being 

developed to determine potential future uses and requirements of this building.     

 

Wood Innovation and Design Centre Update: 

 

The building fit-out is substantially complete with the final pieces of equipment being installed in the 

next month.   

 

Of the original $2.7 million budget, less than $100,000 is remaining.  The project will be wrapped up 

by the end of February with all funds expended and project close-out will be included in this fiscal 

year end. 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 27, 2016 

Agenda Item:  7. a. 2016/17 Ministry Mandate Letter 

Prepared For:        In-Camera Session    X    Public Session 

Purpose:        Information  X     Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Denise Nagy, Executive Assist, UNBC Board of Governors  

Reviewed By: Heather Sanford, University Secretary 

 

 

Material:  Draft Mandate Letter for Consultation attached.  

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

Dear Board Chairs, Public Post-Secondary Institutions:                                                                             

 

Please find attached the draft 2016/17 Mandate Letter for public post-secondary institutions, for 

review by your board.  

 

An annual Mandate Letter signed by all board members is a deliverable under the Taxpayer 

Accountability Principles.   

 

The 2016/17 Mandate Letter is based on the template for all public sector organizations and outlines 

Government strategic priorities for the public post-secondary system.  Of key importance is 

consultation with institutions on the priorities outlined in the Mandate Letter.  The priorities are long-

term commitments and build upon those in the previous Letters.  

 

I invite you to provide input on the draft Letter, particularly the strategic priorities.  Please direct your 

comments to Ms. Sandra Carroll, Deputy Minister at AVED.DeputyMinister@gov.bc.ca, by 

February 5, 2016.  

 

64

mailto:AVED.DeputyMinister@gov.bc.ca


UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

The final Letter will be informed by your feedback.  I anticipate sharing a copy with you before the 

end of the fiscal year.  In order for all board members to sign the Letter soon after, I would ask that 

this request be considered as you schedule board meetings for the upcoming year. 

 

Thank you for your consideration.  I look forward to receiving your comments on the draft Mandate 

Letter. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Andrew Wilkinson 

Minister of Advanced Education 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

65



1 

 

2016/17 Draft Mandate Letter for Consultation 

 

 

Full Name and Address        Our Ref. 101302 

 

 

 

 

Dear [Name of Board Chair of Institution]: 

 

On behalf of the province of British Columbia, I would like to thank you for your leadership and the 

contributions made by [Institution] over the past year.  We recognize the efforts made in supporting 

the strategic actions identified in the 2015/16 Mandate Letter, which continue to be priorities this 

year.  

 

In 2014, Government established a common set of principles for British Columbia public sector 

organizations.  The intent of the Taxpayer Accountability Principles is to strengthen accountability 

and promote cost control.  These principles instill a common frame of reference to inform decisions 

and ensure that the actions taken and services provided meet public policy objectives established by 

Government on behalf of the citizens of British Columbia.  All public sector organizations are 

expected to understand the responsibility they have to the citizens of British Columbia and how it is 

complimentary to the fiduciary duty to their organizations. 

 

This Mandate Letter confirms your mandate, provides the annual strategic direction from 

Government and sets out key performance expectations for the 2016/17 fiscal year for your 

institution.  

Respect for the taxpayer through affordable public policies is a core Government value.  It is critical 

that public post-secondary institutions operate as efficiently as possible, to ensure British Columbians 

are provided with the highest-quality programs and services.  This requires constant focus on 

maintaining a cost-conscious and principled culture through the efficient and effective delivery of 

programs and services that stand the test of public scrutiny and help develop a prosperous economy 

in an environmentally sustainable manner.  The foundation of this work is the commitment by 

Government to controlling spending and balancing the budget. 

 

Government is responsible for funding, setting the legislative, regulatory and public policy 

frameworks in which public post-secondary institutions operate along with establishing the 

Institution’s mandate.  This includes the following statutory provisions.  

 

[Relevant legislative references to be added in final letter to each institution] 

 

Within the terms of the legislation, [Institution] will, in fulfilling its mandate, consider strategic 

priorities of Government when allocating institutional resources.   

 

To achieve this mandate, the [Institution] is directed to take the following strategic actions: 

 

 Develop and implement an updated Skills Gap Plan, in alignment with priorities of the 

BC Skills for Jobs Blueprint; 

66



2 

 

 Work in partnership with the Government and Aboriginal communities, organizations and 

institutes to implement the Aboriginal Post-Secondary Education and Training Policy 

Framework and Action Plan to increase the participation and success of Aboriginal learners; 

 Continue to deliver on the goals of the International Education Strategy including pursuing 

opportunities to advance the two-way flow of students (Nicola Valley Institute of Technology 

is exempt from the requirement to increase international students); 

 Collaborate with the Ministry on the development of a single, unified application system for 

all public post-secondary institutions in the province;  

 Meet or exceed the financial targets identified in the Ministry’s three-year Service Plan as 

tabled under Budget 2016, including maintaining balanced or surplus financial results; and 

 Continue to maximize the efficient use of public post-secondary administrative resources 

through the Administrative Service Delivery Transformation initiative. 

 

To achieve this, several actions as detailed in the 2014 Taxpayer Accountability Principles transition 

letter, are to continue to be implemented and refined, such as, on-going orientation, the joint strategic 

engagement plan, and the evaluation plan.  For information on the Principles, please see 

http://gov.bc.ca/crownaccountabilities.  

 

Government is committed to continuing to revitalize the relationship between Government and public 

post-secondary institutions.  This strong focus on increased two-way communication supports and 

ensures a common understanding of Government’s expectations and institutional priorities.  Timely 

communication of any issues that may affect [Institution] and/or the interests of Government is 

critical to building trust and the effective delivery of public services, including information on any 

risks to achieving financial forecasts and performance targets. 

 

As public post-secondary institutions that receive funding from the Government, institutions are 

expected to conduct their affairs in a manner consistent with the legislative, regulatory and policy 

framework established by Government and share in upholding the Taxpayer Accountability 

Principles.  This includes: 

 

1. Adhering to the policy, guidelines and directions of the Public Sector Employers’ Council 

regarding executive compensation and the management freeze that remains in place for the 

present time, recognizing the fiscal reality facing the provincial public sector. 

 

2. Negotiating settlements with unionized employee groups consistent with the Economic 

Stability Mandate for all collective agreements that expire on or after December 31, 2013. 

 

3. Ensuring that institutional operational and financial activities, including procurement and 

travel, are conducted consistent with Government standards for cost-consciousness and the 

most cost-effective use of taxpayer resources. 

 

4. Conducting board matters in accordance with the best practice guideline. 

 

[For Colleges and Institutes only] 

5. Ensure board remuneration rates comply with Order in Council 180/95 and that remuneration is 

publicly disclosed annually on the institution’s or associated ministry’s website as required by 

the Treasury Board Directives. 

 

67

http://gov.bc.ca/crownaccountabilities


3 

 

The Core Policy and Procedures Manual of Government can be found on the Ministry of Finance 

website at http://www.fin.gov.bc.ca/ocg/fmb/manuals/CPM/CPMtoc.htm and other supporting 

documents found on the Public Sector Employers’ Council Secretariat website at 

http://www.fin.gov.bc.ca/psec/. 

 

The Government has also provided the Institution with Reporting Requirements which sets out 

statistical, financial and performance reporting requirements and which can be found on the 

Ministry’s website.  The Institution agrees to meet these Reporting Requirements, and provide the 

Government with reports and high quality data required by Government to carry out its 

responsibilities.   

 

As our economy grows, there will be thousands of job openings in various occupations.  More than 

78 percent of these openings will require post-secondary education.  These jobs range from 

professions to skilled trades to management.  To ensure that British Columbians have the training and 

skills needed to take advantage of these opportunities, our Government launched the BC Skills for 

Jobs Blueprint in April 2014.  Thousands of students who are taking courses this fall – from critical 

trades to health care to business administration – are doing so as a result of targeted funding for 

high-priority occupations. 

 

Government is committed to providing support to help students succeed, while at the same time 

making sure that funding is focused on front-line education.  British Columbia has taken great strides 

in making post-secondary education affordable and accessible for students of all backgrounds.  Our 

Government works with employers, institutions and students to provide research, education and 

training to position our diverse workforce for continued success on a competitive global stage. 

 

Together we need to continue to look for more opportunities to position our public post-secondary 

system for ongoing success. 

 

Each board member is required to acknowledge the direction provided in the Mandate Letter by 

signing this letter.  The Mandate Letter is to be posted publicly on your institution’s website and a 

copy signed by all board members provided to the Ministry and made available upon request.  

 

I look forward to our regular meetings focusing on strategic priorities, performance against the 

Taxpayer Accountability Principles, key results and working together to protect the public interest at 

all times. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

 

Andrew Wilkinson 

Minister  

 

Attachment:  Taxpayer Accountability Principles 

pc: Distribution List Follows 

pc: Honourable Christy Clark 

Premier 

68

http://www.fin.gov.bc.ca/ocg/fmb/manuals/CPM/CPMtoc.htm
http://www.fin.gov.bc.ca/psec/


4 

 

 

Mr. John Dyble 

Deputy Minister to the Premier and Cabinet Secretary 

 

Ms. Kim Henderson  

Deputy Minister and Secretary to Treasury Board 

Ministry of Finance 

 

Ms. Sandra Carroll 

Deputy Minister 

Ministry of Advanced Education  

 

Ms. Cheryl Wenezenki-Yolland 

Associate Deputy Minister 

Ministry of Finance 

 

 

Signature page will be added in final letter 

  

69



5 

 

 

B.C. Taxpayer Accountability Principles 

Further information available at: http://gov.bc.ca/crownaccountabilities 

1 Cost Consciousness 
(Efficiency) 

Strengthen cost management capabilities and foster a culture of 
cost-consciousness at all levels of public sector organizations.  
Provide public services and programs as efficiently and 
effectively as possible to “bend the cost curve” and support 
sustainable public policies and programs as a lasting legacy for 
generations to come. 

2 Accountability Transparently manage responsibilities according to a set of 
common public sector principles in the best interest of the 
citizens of the province.  By enhancing organizational efficiency 
and effectiveness in the planning, reporting and decision making, 
public sector organizations will ensure actions are aligned with 
government’s strategic mandate. 

3 Appropriate Compensation Comply with a rigorous, standardized approach to performance 
management and employee compensation, which reflects 
appropriate compensation for work across the public sector that 
is consistent with government’s taxpayer accountability principles 
and respectful of the taxpayer. 

4 Service Maintain a clear focus on positive outcomes for citizens of British 
Columbia by delivering cost-efficient, effective, value-for-money 
public services and programs. 

5 Respect Engage in equitable, compassionate, respectful and effective 
communications that ensure all parties are properly informed or 
consulted on actions, decisions and public communications in a 
timely manner.  Proactively collaborate in a spirit of partnership 
that respects the use of taxpayers’ monies. 

6 Integrity Make decisions and take actions that are transparent, ethical 
and free from conflict of interest.  Require the establishment of a 
strong ethical code of conduct for all employees and executives.  
Serve the citizens of British Columbia by respecting the shared 
public trust and acting in accordance with the taxpayer 
accountability principles. 

 

70

http://gov.bc.ca/crownaccountabilities


71



72



73



74



75



76



Page 1 of 2 

 

    Board of Governors 
University of Northern British Columbia 

       3333 University Way, Prince George, BC, V2N 4Z9

     

 

 

BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 18, 2016 
Agenda Item / 
Prepared For: 

External Relations  – Public Session 

Purpose: ____  Information __X__ Discussion 
 ____ Seeking Direction ____ Decision/Approval 
Prepared by: K Scouten/M Wood 
Reviewed by: D Weeks 

 
 

 
1. Fundraising: 

 
 

Distribution of 
Donations 

April 2014 – December 2014 April 2015 – December 2015 

Total Giving Donor Count  Total Giving Donor Count 

Student Awards $312,691 235 $930,785 349 
General $265,082 172 $94,505 161 
Athletics  $108,323 141 $132,229 136 

Northern Medical 
Program Trust $234,201 583 $106,513 440 

First Nations $11,160 6 $25,560 4 
Library $29,110 25 $81,101 23 

Green Initiatives $401,821 10 $2,832 7 
 General 

Research $85,117 9 $80,475 11 

Area of Greatest 
Need $36,997 116 $56,221 139 

Gift in Kind $58,379 59 $175,095 56 
Office of Research $28,661 1 $255,347 2 

     

Total $1,571,542 1357 $1,940,663 1328 

 

 

77



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 

a. Donor and prospect meetings, campaign planning 
b. Thank a Donor Day in Canfor Wintergarden, generate awareness and engagement 

in culture of philanthropy within UNBC community 
c. Fundraising initiatives of special note: Jared Parker Memorial Scholarship fund, 

Reuben Horwitz Award 
  

2. Communication with Stakeholders (and Alumni Relations): 
a. “Higher Education, Stronger Economy” UNBC hosted lunch with PG Chamber of 

Commerce, President Weeks and Greg D’Avignon January 19th 
b. Aboriginal Alumni Speaker Series launches, highlighting aboriginal graduates and 

providing mentorship to students and generating awareness of UNBC’s impact on 
aboriginal education : 6.5% of UNBC Alumni 
 

3. Government and Political Relations: 
a. Verbal 

 

 

Giving by 
Constituency 

April 2014 –    December 2014 April 2015 –    December 2015 

Total Giving Donor Count Total Giving Donor Count 

Association / 
Organization $63,636 29 $642,664 23 

Business / 
Corporation $909,210 188 $280,204 150 

Foundations $242,653 10 $510,704 13 

Government $6,257 4 $17,089 7 

Individuals (non-
UNBC) $249,737 717 $393,064 692 

UNBC Individuals $60,020 128 $67,089 173 

Alumni $40,029 162 $29,849 165 

     

Total $1,571,542 1238 $1,940,663 1223 

     

78



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 18, 2016 

Agenda Item:  9. a. Office of Research Report 

Prepared For:      In-Camera Session   X  Public Session 

Purpose:  X   Information     Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Dr. Geoff Payne 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Attached 

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

79



VICE-PRESIDENT, RESEARCH BOARD REPORT – JANUARY 2016 

 
Overview: 
Expanding on activities since the last board report in November there has been a 
number of successful research highlights outlined below. Additionally, the remainder of 
my report will outline more details expanding on the future directions of the Vice 
President Research Portfolio and the Office of Research. 
 
Research Highlights: 
 

 The internal Rapid Access Research funding opportunity from the Office of 
Research saw over 25 applications from faculty members of both colleges apply 
in the areas focused on NSERC and SSHRC research activities. Following review, 
the committee recommended 20 applications be awarded with a total funding of 
$115,105. The objective of this funding opportunity is to facilitate faculty 
members acquiring data that will be used to support a larger external grant 
application. 
 

 We have submitted an application for a Michael Smith Foundation for Health 
Research Scholar award in the area of Rehabilitation Sciences. If successful, this 
award will provide research operating support for up to seven years. UNBC 
currently has one MSFHR Scholar, Dr. Sarah de Leeuw.  

 
 The Tri-institute (CDI, HRI and NRESi) Cumulative Impacts Research Consortium 

(CIRC) was recently awarded a grant from the SSHRC as part of the Knowledge 
Synthesis Competition entitled “A scoping review on the community impacts of 
unconventional natural gas development in northern British Columbia” lead by 
Dr. Greg Halseth. 

 
 The Office of Research has engaged in a partnership with the Prince George 

Innovation Central Society to help support the HUBSPACE initiative aimed at 
supported innovation activities. 

 
 The Office of Research staff recently hosted the CARA West conference aimed at 

University Research Administrators which had University representatives from all 
of the western research Universities. This conference was extremely successful. 

 
 The Office of Research held its retreat in December to develop a plan of activities 

for 2016. This is outlined in more detail in the next section. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 80



Office of Research 2016: 
 
Office of Research 
The Office of Research is comprised of nine staff members that include four Project 
Officers (two of which are half-time), Partnership & Innovation Officer, Ethics Officer, 
Animal Care and Use Administrative support, Administrative Assistant and Executive 
Assistant. This team is lead by the Vice President of Research.  
 

Action: 
 
 

 Create expertise and linkages to the UNBC Development Office and Vice 
President Advancement team to enhance and align philanthropic donor’s 
contributions to research opportunities. 
 

 Create a strong industry partnership program with linkages to innovation 
and commercialization. 
 

 Develop a strategic communication plan that will enable the identity, 
recognition and dissemination of research and research successes at the 
University in collaboration with the Vice President Advancement team. 
 

 Develop a faculty mentorship program to support junior faculty in and 
across the tri-council disciplines (CIHR, NSERC and SSHRC). 

 
 Evaluate and enhance existing processes and procedures and develop 

new ones that support the research mandate. 
 

 
Internal Funding Programs 
Historically the three major internal funding programs lead by the Vice President of 
Research are the seed grant, travel grant and publication grant. All of these funding 
programs have been in place for over 15 years without changes and need to be 
evaluated to ensure we are enhancing the research vision of the University. The other 
internal funding program has been the utilization and leverage of overhead funding to 
provide support for faculty grant submissions or one-time infrastructure opportunities.  
 

Action: 
 

 Evaluate and re-align the internal funding programs to better serve the 
research mandate and mission to better position UNBC for the future.  
 

 Increase funding amount to seed grants and stipulate that submission to 
external funding agency within 12 months of a successful seed grant is 
required in the focused area of the awarded grant as part of the new 
Research Pathway Program (RPP). 

81



 Develop collaboration with the Dean of Graduate Programs to align the 
“graduate student research program award” program with Office of 
Research “seed grant” program to jointly fund a student and faculty 
member simultaneously. 
 
 

 Develop a strategic Research Overhead program to increase overhead 
funding and utilization of overhead resources: 

o Increase University overhead rate to an appropriate level in order 
to meet the increase cost of “doing research” at UNBC. 

o All grants and contracts that are submitted will have overhead 
applied regardless of funding source that is policy based in 
determining the rate. 

 
External Grant Funding  
External funding is vital to the success of the University. In recent years there has been 
significant changes within the Tri-Council agencies including how grants are reviewed 
and new funding parameters/programs. There has also been a shift towards external 
granting opportunities requiring additional matching or contributing funds. Finally, there 
continues to remain an issue for the sharing of resources (overhead, funding dollars and 
post award identification) that needs to be addressed for multi-institutional grants. 
 

Action  
 

 Continue to liase with national funding agencies on the importance of 
small Universities the need for new ways to approach funding and all 
funding parameters outlined above and work with comparable small 
research intensive Universities on a Small University Research Platform. 

 
 
Research Chairs and Institutes Review  
The Research Chairs and Institutes are meant to be the leadership core and fostering 
and enhancing the research direction of the University. Their activities must align with 
the Strategic Research Plan.  
 

Action: 
 

 In order to achieve this there will be an annual review of all Research 
Chairs and three year review of Research Institutes. We would expect our 
chairs to be leaders in grant success, publications and mentorship of 
junior faculty and these research chairs will be core research individuals 
within the Research Institutes. 

 
 
 
 
 

82



New areas of focus 
It is vital for the success of the research mission that we continue to be proactive and 
adaptable to meet the changing landscape of the research environment from the 
provincial, national and international perspective.  
 
Areas to include: 
 

 International Research: Will include a two pronged approach; 1) evaluate 
existing educational relationships with other Universities to see if there 
are research opportunities that align between the Universities 2) 
Proactively engage research Universities whose research interests align 
with UNBC. 
 

 Alignment of the Northern Sports Centre to increase academic and 
research presence and utilize the Centre to leverage research 
opportunities (e.g. Wellness in Northern BC). 

 
 Clinical Research Platform which local (Northern Health) and Provincial 

(Pacific Health Innovation Exchange, BC Clinical Research Infrastructure 
Network and Academic Health Sciences Network) partnerships. 

 
 BC Interior University Partnership (Thompson Rivers University, UBC 

Okanogan) on Research Exchange. 
 

 Innovation/Entrepreneur Hub. 
 
 
Strategic Research Plan  
The UNBC Strategic Research Plan was last updated in 2010 and recommended to 
continue until 2017. 
 
Action: 
 

 The UNBC Strategic Research Plan will be updated immediately to 
meet/reflect the ongoing direction of existing areas of research, add new 
areas of focus and align with the development and implementation of the 
Academic Plan. 

 
Summary 
It is key that the above overarching plan align with the revised UNBC Strategic Research 
Plan under the portfolio of the Vice President Research in order to support the above 
identified research activities at UNBC. This has to be achieved in a coordinated and 
strategic approach from both an internal and external perspective to ensure the long-
term research success at UNBC. This approach will maximize opportunities and alleviate 
the decrease in funding that has been observed for a number of years. This will also 
provide the necessary ability to leverage current and new opportunities leading to a 
world leading successful and sustainable research program at UNBC. 

83



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 29, 2016 

Agenda Item:  10. President’s Report  

Prepared For:          In-Camera Session      X    Public Session 

Purpose:    X    Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Daniel Weeks, President  

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Verbal Report.  

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

84



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

 

 

Date: January 29, 2016 

Agenda Item:  11. Chancellor’s Report 

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session    X     Public Session 

Purpose:  X   Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction       Approval 

Prepared By: Dr. John MacDonald, UNBC Chancellor 

Reviewed By:  

 

 

Material:  Verbal Report. 

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background:   

 

 

 

Motion:   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

85



UNBC Board of Governors – Agenda Item Briefing Note 

 
                              BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
AGENDA ITEM BRIEFING NOTE 
 

Date: January 29, 2016 

Agenda Item:  12. a. Directors & Officers Liability Coverage  

Prepared For:       In-Camera Session     X    Public Session 

Purpose:   X    Information       Discussion       Seeking Direction        Approval 

Prepared By: Denise Nagy, Executive Assistant, UNBC Board of Governors  

Reviewed By: Heather Sanford, University Secretary and the President’s Executive Council 

 

 

Material: Directors and Officers Liability – Duties Owed by Directors & Officers 

        Directors & Officers Liability and Corporate Reimbursement Agreement 

 

 

 

Issue:   

 

 

 

Background: 

 

 

 

Motion:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation Approved:       Not Approved:       Date:  

 

Remarks/Next Steps:  

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94




